1966

# Myrtle Flewelling Christensen v. Harold Elwood Christensen : Appellant's Brief

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The plaintiff and defendant were married January 22, 1964. Pleadings and T-4. Plaintiff had been previously married and widowed, T-4. Defendant had children by prior marriage, T-5. The plaintiff was 61 (in error being 68) years of age, T-11. Defendant was 67 years of age, T-11. No children were born to them nor are any expected.

The plaintiff's action seeking a divorce was dated March 3, 1965. On the same day the defendant signed an appearance and waiver and the parties signed a stipulation in which each released claims against the property of the other and the plaintiff waived all alimony (paragraph 7). It is further provided that the defendant pay the plaintiff

\$5,000.00 by transferring monies in a savings account and accrued benefits in Fireman's Credit Union (paragraph 2). Withdrawal instruments were signed by the defendant and the funds within a few days of March 3 were delivered to the plaintiff.

The defendant on March 12 filed an answer and counter-claim. Neither the answer nor the counter-claim referred to the stipulation nor asked relief from its provisions.

The cause came on for trial September 30, 1965, with the parties and counsel present. The Court inquired, "Is there any contest on the divorce?", to which defendant's counsel answered "No, sir," and at T-3 the Court said: "There is no contest on the issues for the grounds of divorce." Mr. Patterson: "That's right, your Honor".

The plaintiff then testified in support of her allegation of mental cruelty. No effort was made to cross examine the plaintiff concerning her cause of action, and the Court indicated that she had shown a prima facie case of cruelty, and "I'll grant a divorce on those grounds," T-9.

Testimony was then offered that Mr. Christensen moved into the home owned by Mrs. Christensen which was fully furnished. That he brought an old car, and that the plaintiff owned an automobile. That she withdrew money and paid her own expenses on the honeymoon, T-8. That the plaintiff lost social security benefits of \$80.00 per month, T-10. The balance of the hearing is principally statements of counsel to the Court with the Court recessing the proceedings with the observations made at T-13 and 14.

The transcript does not indicate any instructions concerning the submission of briefs, but reference is made to them in the minute entry entered in said cause under the date of September 30, 1965.

The Court's determination to reject the stipulation without pleadings or testimony attacking it, together with a misunderstanding of plaintiff's counsel in a conversation had with the Court prompted the plaintiff to file her affidavit of prejudice. In counsel's conversation with the Court, counsel erroneously concluded that the judge was reluctant to continue in the trial of said cause, and that if an affidavit of prejudice were filed that this cause would be assigned to another department of the court. On order assigning the case to another judge for trial was submitted on hearing denied and went unsigned.

Plaintiff's counsel, anticipating the transfer, filed no memorandum of authorities within the time allotted. Thereupon the defendant moved the Court to enter an order finding the issues of law reserved by the Court in the defendant's favor. Hearing on said motion was had on the 15th day of November, 1965, after which the Court extended to plaintiff an opportunity within ten days to file his memorandum for the assistance of the Court. Such memorandum was filed, with the defendant's counsel filing an answering brief.

On receipt of counsel's brief, the Court, having deemed the matter to be under advisement awaiting briefs, entered its memorandum decision on the 4th day of January, 1966, as the same appears in the files herein.

Being advised that a reconciliation was under consideration by the parties, plaintiff's counsel did not prepare any findings of fact nor conclusions of law. That there-

upon the defendant submitted to the Court his findings of fact and conclusions of law which were signed by the Court on the 11th day of March, 1966, although the plaintiff did not receive a copy of said findings of fact, conclusions of law, or decree until the 15th day of March, 1966.

Plaintiff then filed her objections to the memorandum decision; a motion for an order vacating the entry of the defendant's findings, and a motion for the entry of plaintiff's findings. The defendant made objections to the plaintiff's findings.

Thereafter the Court, under the date of March 17, 1966, signed the plaintiff's findings and entered an order vacating the entry of the defendant's findings of fact and conclusions of law.

Thereafter on May 2, 1966, the Court with counsel indicated its dissatisfaction with the plaintiff's findings, indicated that questions concerning the plaintiff's and defendant's properties were not fully gone into at the time of the trial, and continued the matter for further hearing "for the sole purpose of receiving testimony concerning the property and the value of the property of the parties." The transcript of proceedings, May 2, 1966, P-2.

Thereafter on June 24, 1966, further hearing was had in said matter. At said hearing, the defendant offered testimony concerning the value of the properties of the parties, and the plaintiff made proffers of proof.

The Court thereupon entered its order affirming its previous memorandum of decision and directing the defendant's findings of fact, conclusions of law, and decree be entered as the judgment in said cause.

## RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

The plaintiff seeks a reversal of that portion of the judgment requiring the plaintiff to return \$3,500.00 of the \$5,000.00 paid to the plaintiff by the defendant under the Stipulation signed by the parties and seeks to have this Court enter its own order approving the Stipulation and authorizing the retention by the plaintiff of the \$5,000.00 paid to her under the Stipulation.

### ARGUMENT

#### POINT I:

ERROR OF THE TRIAL COURT IN CONTINUING TO HEAR AND DETERMINE THE ISSUES IN SAID CAUSE AFTER THE FILING OF AN AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE UNDER RULES 63 (B) U.R.C.P.

Anderson vs. Anderson 13 Utah 2d 36, 368 P 2nd 264 the Court on page 265 commented on a situation where an Affidavit of Prejudice had been filed against the trial judge and said as follows,

“If the rule means anything at all it means that what is plainly stated to the effect that the Judge against whom the Affidavit of Bias and Prejudice thereafter cannot proceed to hear the issue himself. Our only conclusion is that any order of judgment based on evidence thereafter taken by him would be ineffective against the affiant. It follows that this case must be remanded for another trial of the issues.”

#### POINT II

ERROR OF THE COURT IN CHANGING THE STIPULATION OF THE PARTIES WHEN:

A. THE STIPULATION WAIVED ALIMONY AND WAS A PROPERTY SETTLEMENT.

B. WHEN THE PLAINTIFF DID NOT CHALLENGE THE STIPULATION NOR SEEK ANY DEPARTURE FROM IT.

C. WHEN THE DEFENDANT DID NOT CHALLENGE THE STIPULATION BY PLEADINGS NOR OFFER ANY TESTIMONY THAT THE SAME WAS NOT ACCEPTABLE NOR THAT THE SAME WAS OBTAINED BY FRAUD, DURESS, OR MISREPRESENTATION.

The power of the Court to change the stipulated provisions of the parties regarding alimony and support money is generally conceded based upon public policy considerations, See

Barraclough vs. Barraclough, 111 P 2d 792 - 100 U 196  
Callister vs. Callister, 261 P 2d 944 - UCA Section  
30-3-4

Jones vs. Jones, 139 P 2d 222 - 104 U 275

Madsen vs. Madsen, 276 P 2d 917 - 2 Utah 2d 423  
24 Am Jur 2d Section 670

So far as counsel has been able to find, this Court has never been called upon to answer the following proposition. Does the Court have discretion to change a stipulated property settlement agreement without provisions for alimony or support money where the defendant does not by pleadings or testimony show the same to be unfair or to have been procured by undue influence, fraud or misrepresentation.

In the Hall case, (177 P 2d 731) a property settlement was presented to the Court which provided that the de-

defendant pay to the wife \$65.00 per month in semi-monthly payments. The defendant did not answer nor appear. At the hearing where the plaintiff testified that the sum was reasonable for her support and that her husband was earning \$150.00 per month. The Court struck from the findings the figure of \$65.00 and changed it to \$80.00 per month. The defendant became delinquent on the basis of the \$80.00 per month whereupon the plaintiff filed an affidavit alleging the arrearage. The defendant was found in contempt for failure to pay the \$80.00 per month. From this contempt finding an appeal was taken.

The Stipulation signed by the parties was specific in several aspects.

- a. It is provided that the award to the plaintiff shall be a property settlement of all claims against the defendant.
- b. There was no provision for periodic payment.
- c. There was no provision for alimony but rather a provision that the payment was in lieu of alimony.
- d. The settlement was a lump sum and was accepted in lieu of alimony support money or loss of social security payments.
- e. It released claims against each other's property together with all other claims including promises made prior to the marriage, obligations accruing during the marriage, or subsequent thereto.
- f. Settlement money was paid and partly spent.

Admittedly, the Courts have under public policy considerations:

- a. Ignored the label put on the property settlement

Ross vs. Ross, 403 P 2d 19

b. Found periodic property settlement provisions to have been alimony, 24 Am Jur Section 670.

c. Modified property settlement provisions where parts of the Stipulation made provision for alimony, 24 Am Jur Section 670.

Conceding the desirability of such public policy there would still seem to be equally as important a public policy for the Court not to over ride the obvious contractual desires and provisions of parties desiring to settle between themselves the financial side of their separation. Certainly this should not be done until it has been established that the Stipulation was improperly obtained.

In the Hall case, page 733: "It is true that we have held that a Stipulation for an alimony settlement is only a recommendation from the Court." See Jones vs. Jones 104 Utah 275 139 P 2d 222, "But we did not mean by that that it was to be given no weight at all. Lacking any proof to the contrary the lower Court could assume that the parties best know their own financial standing and capabilities and accept their Stipulation for its face value unless the Court Records before the Court obviously indicate that to accept the Stipulation would not accomplish equity. To ignore the wishes of the parties without grounds for doing so clearly is an arbitrary and capricious act." The judgment of contempt was reversed.

In the Mathie case, (363, P 2d 779 12 Utah 2d 116,) following a prior divorce suit, the parties entered into a reconciliation agreement. In a second subsequent action the plaintiff did not seek alimony or support money, and none was awarded, but the Court generally followed the

pattern set by the parties in the reconciliation agreement. The appeal was taken attacking the disposition of the property. The Court makes rather an extensive review of the authorities but notes "However, we are not disposed to disagree with the proposition that where neither spouse is in a position of undue disadvantage and they voluntarily enter into a contract which affects their rights only, it should be regarded as presumptively valid, and the Court should give it effect unless there are persuasive reasons for doing otherwise."

In *Adams vs. Adams* 177 P 2d page 265, the parties had reached a stipulation providing for the division of their property and for the payment of alimony for 18 months only and support for a minor child. The plaintiff indicated her acceptance of the stipulation and her counsel noted the negotiations preceding the settlement. Despite this the Court refused to approve the property settlement, directed the plaintiff to file an amended complaint seeking a greater sum. The defendant refused to stipulate the change and after default the Court entered an order for the larger sum consistent with his notions. The defendant appealed, contending that the property settlement is valid in the absence of a finding; that it is inequitable or was procured by fraud or compulsion and should have been approved by the trial Court.

The Court analyzes three categories of support and maintenance provisions noting a third category where the wife by contract waives all support and maintenance. The Court on page 267 notes as follows. "Property settlement agreements occupy a favored position in the law of this state and are sanctioned by the Civil Code." "When the parties have finally agreed upon the division of their

property, the Courts are loath to disturb their agreement except for equitable considerations. A property settlement agreement, therefore, that is not tainted by fraud or compulsion or is not in violation of the confidential relationship of the parties is valid and binding on the court."

"If the contract was not fraudulent when made, and there was no violation of the confidential relationship, it will be binding on the Court and there can be no modification of the payments after the decree without the consent of the parties." The Court notes on page 269: "If her consent to the agreement was procured through fraud or compulsion, or if circumstances are such that the Court finds the agreement inequitable, the Court may withhold approval of the agreement . . . since nothing was shown to indicate that the agreement was inequitable, the parties are bound by the agreement."

For the Court without a challenge from either party by pleadings or testimony challenging the manner in which the Stipulation was obtained to arbitrarily impose new terms upon the parties was an abuse of discretion. *Alexander vs. Alexander* 199 P 2d 348 and *Halloway vs. Halloway*, 179 P 2d 22 held that a property settlement agreement containing provisions for support and maintenance of wife as part of the division of property of the parties is binding on the trial court in absence of fraud, duress, undue influence, violation of confidential relation, or other circumstances showing the agreement to be inequitable, and after approval of trial court, such provisions cannot be modified by the Court without consent of the parties.

The binding effect of a wife's contractual waiver of alimony must be recognized unless appropriate procedures

are invoked to avoid the waiver. See Cockrum vs. Cockrum, 328 P 2d 1000.

### POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT SO CLEARLY ABUSED ITS DISCRETION THAT THIS COURT SHOULD SUBSTITUTE ITS JUDGMENT FOR THAT OF THE TRIAL COURT AND ORDER JUDGMENT ENTERED PROVIDING THAT THE PLAINTIFF RETAIN ALL OF THE \$5,000.00 PAID HER UNDER THE STIPULATION.

Despite the advantages generally felt to exist in the trial Court and this Court's disposition to affirm if there is any evidence to sustain the position taken by the trial Court, this Court has the right to substitute its judgment for that of the trial Court under proper circumstances. See Wilson case, 296 P 2d 977 5 Utah 2d 79, where the Court said on page 981 as follows, "It is true as defendant contends, that a divorce proceeding is equitable and that it is within the prerogative of this Court to review the evidence and to substitute its judgment for that of the trial Court under proper circumstances." See also, Curry vs. Curry, 321 P 2d 939 7 Utah 2d 198, where this Court reduced the period over which the defendant was required to pay alimony.

### POINT IV

REFUSAL OF THE COURT TO ACCEPT THE PLAINTIFF'S PROFFERS OF PROOF.

The Court's memorandum decision contains the statement "The plaintiff, however, having considerable more property than the defendant" was a finding reached by the Court without any testimony supporting it. The

plaintiff complained of this in her objections to the memorandum decision. To reach this objection, the Court scheduled the second hearing for "the sole purpose of receiving testimony concerning the property and the value of the property of the parties."

The plaintiff offered to prove the cost to her of a single premium no reserve or terminal fund annuity which would provide the benefits of her social security loss by the marriage and also the amount of \$5,000.00 received by her that remained unspent. These were in view of the plaintiff, proper testimony concerning "the property of the parties." While its receipt would not likely have changed the Court's view, the same should have been received in evidence.

#### CONCLUSION

This Court should on its own initiative order the decree modified to permit the plaintiff to retain the \$5,000.00 paid her under the Stipulation.