1966

# Myrtle Flewelling Christensen v. Harold Elwood Christensen : Respondent's Brief

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

## ARGUMENT

### POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN CONTINUING TO HEAR AND DETERMINE THE ISSUES IN SAID CAUSE AFTER THE FILING OF AN

AFFIDAVIT OF PREJUDICE UNDER RULE 63(b)  
U.R.C.P.

The record is devoid of any statements of the Court relative to the plaintiff except, "I know Mrs. Christensen has a house on 25th Street. I know when she bought it from Archie McIntosh, and I know when she converted it into an apartment, so that is very well within the province of the Court." (Record No. 21, p. 9) "The Court: Whether voluntary or involuntary, generally when persons marry they're going to take some loss and some gain. Now she knew she had social security at the time she married Mr. Christensen, and she knew that when she married him she was going to lose it. I know Mrs. Flewelling is too smart to not know that." (Record No. 21, p. 12).

The Affidavit of Prejudice, which was subsequently filed, indicates that the Court was prejudiced because he was personally acquainted with the plaintiff and had knowledge of her business transactions and past personal life. No contention was made as to how said knowledge would prejudice the plaintiff or the defendant. Obviously, the Court had been acquainted with the plaintiff, which the plaintiff had to have known and had known from the time the case was filed until after it was tried. Notwithstanding that, no Affidavit or Motion of Prejudice was filed until after the trial.

The part of Rule 63 that is applicable to this is as follows:

Utah Rules of Civil Procedure, Rule 63(b) "Disqualification. Whenever a party to any action

or proceeding or his attorney shall make and file an affidavit that the Judge before whom such action or proceeding is to be tried or heard has a bias or prejudice, either against such party or his attorney or in favor of any opposite party to the suit, such judge shall proceed to further therein, except to call in another judge to hear and determine the matter.

The meaning of this paragraph is clear, unequivocal and in no way ambiguous. The pertinent part of the paragraph is "*to be tried or heard.*" This clearly implies future proceedings. *Anderson v. Anderson*, 13 Utah 236; 368 P2d 264, is a case where a Petition was brought by the divorced husband for an Order to Show Cause why the award of custody to the divorced wife should not be vacated and why support money should not be terminated. Prior to the time of taking evidence on said petition the defendant filed an Affidavit of Bias and Prejudice against the Court who was to sit, and did sit, on the case. Prior to taking the evidence the trial Court denied removal of the cause to another Judge.

The Supreme Court held that was in error.

However, the plaintiff cites no case wherein after a proceedings has started and evidence has been taken that the rule applies. The reason for this is obvious. Any competent trial lawyer would proceed to trial armed with an Affidavit of Prejudice and at any time during the proceedings, if he felt the Court was leaning toward the other side or he did not like the rulings of the Court on the admission of evidence he could immediately file the Affidavit of Prejudice, terminate the proceedings and start all over with another Judge.

This could continue ad infinitum until plaintiff's counsel felt that he was obtaining rulings favorable for his client, assuming that of course opposing counsel at that time did not file a similar Affidavit of Prejudice on behalf of his client. If plaintiff's position is to be sustained, then obviously no trial would proceed without the filing of an Affidavit of Prejudice and litigation would continue interminably.

The clear intent of the rule, as it explicitly provides, is to afford either party an opportunity to disqualify a judge at any time prior to the taking of evidence. It does not purport and cannot be so interpreted to purport permission for either party to interrupt and terminate a trial that has been presented or partially presented theretofore by the mere filing of an Affidavit of Bias and Prejudice.

It is submitted that the trial court had no alternative but to rule that the filing of the Affidavit of Bias and Prejudice was in fact untimely and to deny the same.

## POINT II

### THE COURT DID NOT ERR IN REFUSING TO FOLLOW THE ALLEGED STIPULATION OF PARTIES,

- (a) *Because the same waived alimony.*
  - (b) *Because plaintiff did not challenge the Stipulation.*
  - (c) *Because defendant did not claim that the same was obtained by fraud, duress or misrepresentation.*
- (a) *Because the same waived alimony,*
  - (b) *Because plaintiff did not challenge the Stipulation*

The two points set forth above will be considered jointly by the defendant.

The defendant did in fact upon the day of execution of the complaint execute a stipulation. At the same time he executed an Entry of Appearance reserving unto himself 20 days to contest the matter. He subsequently did contest all of the application of the plaintiff in his Answer and additionally executed his Counterclaim against the plaintiff asking that a divorce be granted unto himself. At the time of trial the defendant conceded that prior to the time he had employed counsel and prior to the time he decided what he was going to do he had executed the stipulation. (Record 21, pp. 2, 3) The only real issue at the time of trial was the question of the property. (Record 21 pp. 2, 3) The plaintiff was well aware of the situation but argued that having executed the stipulation without benefit of counsel he has no right at any time to contest this matter. The difficulty with this position is that it is contrary to law. The rule is well stated in 27B Corpus Juris Secundum, page 409."

"Property settlement agreements are binding when approved by the court and embodied or merged in the decree entered by the court in a divorce proceeding unless it appears that the decree was procured through fraud."

Further, at Page 411:

"it has been asserted generally that property settlement agreements must be approved by the Court and embodied in the Decree in order to give them validity and efficacy, that it is the court's

decree which gives such settlement its validity.”

“\* \* \* While it is true that husband and wife cannot lawfully enter into an agreement for divorce, yet it is well settled that the amount of alimony which the husband is to pay to the wife, the terms of the payment and the length of time during which such payment is to continue, may be all arranged between them by consent, *subject to the ratification of the court.*” (Emphasis supplied.)

In the same case, *North v. North* the court held that it was the duty of the court to examine the agreement and further held that it was the duty of the court to approve the agreement if it found the contract was free from fraud, collusion, or compulsion and was fair to the wife. Thus we find that the mere entering into the contract between the parties and the filing of the contract in the cause do not make it a part of the judgment of the court until the court examines the entire contract and ratifies or approves it, either by a minute on the trial docket of the Judge or by making some other appropriate order or direction. In addition to what has been said in the *North* case about the need for approval or ratification of the agreement, we have a provision in the “Stipulation” in the instant case that specifically calls for approval by the trial court.

Therefore, from what has been pointed out regarding the need for approval of the “Stipulation” by the trial court, the only question before this court is whether there is sufficient evidence of judicial action by the trial court in connection with the hearing of plaintiff’s petition for divorce in May, 1948 showing that the Court approved

all of the terms of the "Stipulation."

A similar conclusion was stated in the Virginia case *Higgins v. McFarland*, 86 S.E. 2d 168; 196 Va. 889,

A decree for alimony is not founded on contract, but on the natural and legal duty of the husband to support the wife. No agreement of the parties has any effect on the decree awarding alimony unless it is ratified and made effective by judicial sanction. *Capell v. Capell*, 164 Va. 45, 178 S.E. 894; *Branch v. Branch*, 144 Va. 244, 132 S.E. 303; *Henebry v. Henebry*, supra. Judgments and decrees are contracts of the highest order and especially is this so when entered by consent of the parties. *Roberts' Admr. v. Cocks, etc.* 28 Grat. 207, 69 Va. 207; *Hounshell v. Hounshell*, 116 Va. 675, 82 S.E. 689.

See also, Arizona, *Wright v. Stidman*, 390 P2d 107; Georgia, *Kaiser vs. Kaiser*, 114 S.E. 2d 397; Wisconsin, *Bergevin v. Bergevin*, 170 N.W. 820; California, *Anthony v. Anthony*, 211 P2d 331.

The Supreme Court of Utah has not specifically ruled on this question, however, it would appear that there can be no doubt that it would follow this rule. The very cases cited by the plaintiff as authority for its position clearly state that a trial court is not bound by any stipulation. That such stipulation, while not to be considered lightly, is advisory only and that the Court, in the exercise of its sole discretion, may adopt or reject a stipulation. Thus in *Madsen v. Madsen*, 276 P.2d 917; 2 Utah 2d 423, the Court had before it an appeal by a wife where the trial court had not abided by the proposed stipulation. The Supreme Court, in affirming the trial court, stated:

In so assuming she erred, since the trial court, in divorce matters, where the state is an interested party, need not abide, necessarily, with the terms of the litigants' stipulations, although such stipulations should be respected and great weight given thereto. Plaintiff's only complaint in this respect, would be, not that the court was duty bound and erroneously refused to carry out the terms agreed upon, but that it abused its discretion by entering an inequitable decree, a matter we must determine on review. Unless there is a clear abuse of discretion, we cannot disturb the trial court on such matters.

This is precisely contrary to the statement of the plaintiff that the court has not ruled upon the power of the Court to alter a stipulation unless it be shown that there be fraud, duress, or misrepresentation. An examination of *Madsen v. Madsen* does not indicate any place that these allegations were present in the case or that an issue was framed thereon.

Similarly, *Mathie v. Mathie*, 363 P.2d 779; 12 Utah 2d 116, was a case where the wife appealed from a Decree of Divorce insofar as it disclosed the property. The Supreme Court affirmed the trial court with some modifications that it deemed necessary for the purpose of clarification, saying, in part:

It is apparent that the trial court, being convinced that the parties had come to a necessary parting of the ways, and that grounds for divorce were established, proceeded to consider the various factors proper to take into account and in the light thereof made such adjustment of their property rights as he thought would provide the best foundation for each to live separately. Having

done so, it is our duty to give deference to his advantaged position and prerogatives, and not to disturb the decree unless it is shown clearly and persuasively to be so unfair and inequitable as to manifest an abuse of the wide discretion reposed in the trial court in such matters.

The parties cannot by contract completely defeat the authority expressly conferred upon the Court by our statute, Sec. 30-3-5, U.C.A. 1953, in cases of divorce to "make such orders in relation to \* \* \* property \* \* \* as may be equitable." Under it there can be no doubt of the court's prerogative to make whatever disposition of the property, including the rights in such a contract, as it deems fair, equitable and necessary for the protection and welfare of the parties. There is no basis for concluding that the decree entered in the instant case is so manifestly inequitable or unjust that we should upset it.

The Mathie case was a case identical to the case at Bar to the extent that in the Mathie case no alimony or support was asked or awarded. This is precisely the same factor that plaintiff relies on to take it out of the decisions of Utah. The very cases cited by plaintiff are actually authority for the proposition that the fact that a stipulation does not contain provisions for alimony or support money are not binding upon the Court in the absence of fraud, undue influence or misrepresentation. Again the court in the Mathie case does not cite the problem of fraud, undue influence or misrepresentation, nor did it find it necessary to find these elements before a court could deviate from the terms of the stipulation. The remaining cases cited by the plaintiff, to-wit: *Callister v. Callister*, 261 P.2d 944; *Barraclough v. Barra-*

*clough*, 11 P.2d 792 — 100 U. 196; *Hall v. Hall*, 177 P.2d 731 — 111 U. 263; and *Jones v. Jones*, 139 P.2d 222 — 104 U. 275, do not support plaintiff's position. *Hall v. Hall* was a case involving contempt proceedings. While it discussed the power of the Court to adopt or reject a stipulation, an examination of the facts indicate that the evidence discloses that he had been out of work, remarried, had attempted to borrow money from the bank to keep the payments current and that he had done all he could do and had done all that his wife had requested him to do. The Court found that the adjudication of contempt was not well founded. The other three cases, *Jones v. Jones*, *Barracough v. Barracough*, and *Callister v. Callister* were concerned with the power of the Court to modify a decree of divorce where such decree either incorporated therein or approved a stipulation theretofore entered. In each of these cases the Court recognizes the authority inherent in the trial court to subsequently modify a decree, notwithstanding the fact that it was entered into with the accordancy of stipulation by the parties.

Thus in *Barracough v. Barracough*, 11 P.2d 792, 100 U. 196, the Court stated:

Therefore, the trial court erred in determining that the agreement here constituted a "complete and final settlement of all alimony between the parties, and that such settlement has become a final judgment as to alimony \* \* \* insofar as a petition to modify is concerned." In a divorce action the trial court should make such provision for alimony as the present circumstances of the parties warrant, and any stipulation of the parties

in respect thereto serves only as a recommendation to the court. If the court adopts the suggestion of the parties it does not thereby lose the right to make such modification or change thereafter as may be requested by either party based on some change in circumstances warranting such modification. And where an appeal is taken from the judgment of the trial court in such case we will review the record to determine whether or not the applicant is entitled to the relief sought in the petition to modify the alimony decree. *Hampton v. Hampton*, 86 Utah 570, 47 P.2d 419; *Openshaw v. Openshaw*, 80 Utah 9, 12 P.2d 364.

In *Jones v. Jones*, 139 P. 2d 222, 104 U. 275, the Court cited the Barraclough case with approval.

In *Callister v. Callister* 261 P.2d 944, the Court stated:

. . . an agreement or stipulation between parties to a divorce suit as to alimony or payments for support of children is not binding upon the court in entering a divorce decree, but serves only as a recommendation, and if the court adopts the suggestion of the parties it does not thereby lose the right to make such modification or change thereafter as may be requested by either party, based upon change of circumstances warranting such modification. *Jones v. Jones*, 104 Utah 275, 139 P.2d 222; *Barraclough v. Barraclough*, 100 Utah 196, 111 P.2d 792.

In said decision the Court discussed the decisions that hold that a Court has no power after judgment to modify a decree, based upon an agreed property settlement, and held:

But insofar as the decision might be considered

authority for the doctrine that the court has no jurisdiction to modify an award of alimony in a case where there has been a property settlement, we are not inclined to follow it.

It is obvious therefore that rule in Utah requires (1) an agreed stipulation by the parties, and (2) that even though an agreed stipulation is submitted by the parties to the Court that it is advisory only and that the trial court need not adopt the same, and that this power to deviate includes the power to modify the same, whether the same incorporates the stipulation or not.

In this case the defendant elected to contest the provisions of the stipulation. He further elected to dispute her right to any property *acquired by the defendant prior to the marriage*. Further, the trial court found that it would be unequitable and unjust to award her substantially all of the property owned by the defendant after only one year of marriage. Even so the court did in fact award her approximately one-third of the assets that he had prior to entering into the marital agreement. This is in accord with the rule that has long been recognized in Utah on an award of one-third of the husband's property to the wife. *Griffin v. Griffin*, 18 Utah 98, 55 P.84; *Porter v. Porter*, 109 Utah 444, 166 P.2d 516; *Bullen v. Bullen*, 71 Utah 63, 262 P. 292.

The decision of the trial court was entirely within the scope of cases previously approved by the Supreme Court of the State of Utah. The plaintiff does not contend that there was an abuse of discretion per se. She merely says that the amount of money allocated was insufficient and that the court did not cooperate and

abused its discretion by following the rules set down by the State of Utah.

(c) *Because he did not claim that the Stipulation was obtained by Fraud, Duress, or Misrepresentation.*

As has heretofore been seen the trial courts in Utah do have the right to disregard a stipulation and in fact have the power to modify a Decree which adopted or approved the same. The only cases that the Court cites are two California decisions, *Alexander v. Alexander*, 199 P.2d 348, and *Hallowell v. Hallowell*, 179 P.2d 22. Both of these cases are California decisions. They hold that a Court cannot modify a decree of divorce wherein the decree adopts a stipulation voluntarily entered by the parties as has been previously seen. The Utah Court has considered this precise argument in *Barracrough v. Barracrough* and chose specifically not to adopt the same.

Even this rule is not as rigid as counsel would have the Court believe. Thus in *Morgan v. Morgan*, 234 P.2d 782, the Court had before it the problem of one party demanding that the prior property settlement be enforced upon their spouse who claimed that the agreement had been in fact cancelled and terminated. The trial court agreed with the latter contention and upon appeal so did the Court of appeals say:

Whether, in such a case, the agreement does or does not continue in force, depends upon the mutual intentions and understanding of the parties. It is to be determined by the court as a question of fact, and upon indirect evidence in the absence of direct evidence. As said in *Estate of Boeson*, 201 Cal. 36, 42, 255 P. 800, 802: "Prop-

erty settlements entered into by the spouses, it is true, should be set aside in cases where the acts, conduct and relations of the parties thereafter are of such a character as to justify the conclusion that they intended and agreed orally to abrogate the same (citing cases).” It has frequently been held, at least as to executory provisions of a property settlement agreement, that cancellation will be inferred and former rights will be restored by reconciliation and resumption of marital relation. *Mundt v. Connecticut Gen. Life Ins. Co.*, 35 Cal. App. 2d 416, 95 P.2d 966; *Wells v. Stout*, 9 Cal. 479; *Sargent v. Sargent*, 106 Cal. 541, 39 P. 931; *Lloyd Corp., Ltd. v. Ind. Acc. Comm.*, 61 Cal. App. 2d. 275, 142 P.2d 754; *Gregg v. Manufacturers Bldg. Corp.*, 134 Cal. App. 147, 25 P.2d 1014. See also, 30 C.J. 1065, 1066, 42 C.J.S., Husband and Wife, 601; *Nelson on Divorce*, Vol. 1, p, 495, sec. 13.14.

Each case is to be decided on its own facts. It is unnecessary to distinguish the cases relied upon by appellant which had only that the evidence was sufficient to support findings contrary to the claim that the several property settlement agreements were abrogated by subsequent oral agreements.

The gist of this argument by the plaintiff is that she now requests the Supreme Court to set forth and adopt the California minority view, which it has heretofore rejected.

### POINT III

#### THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION.

The plaintiff states that as a rule of law the Supreme Court has a right to modify under proper circumstances

the decision of a trial court in a divorce action, and that as a consequence the Supreme Court should in this case modify the trial Court's decision. The plaintiff does not say why it should be modified, how and in what manner the Court abused its discretion, how and why the decision of the trial court is inequitable other than the fact that she does not like the decision.

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